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BF-9:

PROPOSED BUDGET FOR FISCAL YEAR 2003 FOR THE COUNTY OF
MAUl (C.C. Nos. 01-244, 02-8 and 02-53; Bill No. _ _ (2001); and MISC. Communication)

CHAIR HOKAMA: ... (gavel) . .. The Council's Committee on Budget and Finance will come
to order. From my very right, we have this evening Mr. Bob Carroll of East Maui Hana
District; next to him, is Ms. Johnson from East Maui -- West Maui Lahaina; next to my
immediate right, is Mr. Mike Molina, Paia-Haiku District; to my left, is Mr. Nishiki from
South Maui, Kihei; then we have the Budget Director for Mayor Apana,
Michele Yoshimura; and two people that the Committee cannot do without is our
support staff, Richelle Kawasaki-Lu and Jo-Ann Sato. Thank you very much, Kula, for
coming out here this evening. And, of course, I'm your Committee Chairman
Riki Hokama from the island of Lanai. We appreciate you coming to take the time to
share your comments regarding the Fiscal Year 2003 Budget Proposal that
Mayor Apana has sent to us. We have 'til May 30 th to complete all action on the County
Budget for the next fiscal year. You will have basically three minutes to share your
comments with us. If you need you have one additional minute to conclude and that is
it. Okay. When you do come up please state your name on the record for us. Please
use the microphone. If you are representing an organization, please state that
organization that you do represent and then proceed with your testimony. Okay. With
that being said, the first person we have this evening is Mr. Bob Johnson .
. . .BEGIN PUBLIC TESTIMONY. ..

MR. JOHNSON: Good evening. I'm Bob Johnson, President of the Pukalani Pensioners. It's
a senior club about 60 of us and we'd like to thank you for coming, spending an evening
coming up to be with us and especially this evening. It's a very important evening
_ _ Thursday you know. So, the major interest in our Club, of course, is the
transportation and we're glad to know that MEO is going to extend their hours for
delivery of dialysis, which will be a big help to seniors. But as you look at the things that
the MEO is responsible for and the community, the benefit that they do to the
community, we ask that you do not reduce the budget any, at all. And so, we appreciate
your interest. Thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you very much, Mr. Johnson. And for your information, I believe
Mayor Apana is recommending $640,000 for the MEO Transportation Program for
vehicle replacement. Okay. Next, we have Jim Crowe. Jim.
MR. CROWE: Hi, I'm Jim Crowe from the MEO Youth Bank. Nice to see you. Thanks for
coming up and thanks for supporting the Youth Bank and that's what we're here to ask
you continue to do that this coming year. During this, this present year, we expanded
our operations on Lanai. We have been on Molokai for some time and then we also as
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some of you know expanded our work into Hana and that's a great personal satisfaction
to me how many good things have happened in Hana. Especially there was about five
seniors who weren't thinking much about college, at least in was back in the back of
their heads, and our guys Duke and Alika just talk, talk, talk and pretty soon they were
thinking about it and then they wanted to do it and they have applied. And we even took
'em to Oahu and to Hilo to look at the school and to meet the people that they're going
to be working with. So, I'm really proud of that one. So, I have two young men here,
two strong young men, who are Americorp volunteers and they will tell you what they
do. Brandon Lewis, you want to go first? And Clinton Fukishima will go second.
MASTER LEWIS: Hi, my name is Brandon Lewis representing Youth Bank Americorp.
MASTER FUKUSHIMA: What we represent?
MASTER LEWIS: Yeah, I also work for TNC, The Nature Conservancy. With that, we do all
kinds of exciting stuff, which he'll tell you about it in a little while. I enjoy repelling down
cliff sides, hanging on for dear life. Like tomorrow is a good example of pretty much
everyday exciting work. I don't know if you want to call it exciting but we have to clear a
new, brand new LZ or Landing Zone for the helicopters that we get transported in from
site to site. Yeah, that's pretty much it. It's very exciting and now Clinton.
MR. FUKUSHIMA: Hi, I'm Clinton Fukushima. I pretty much do the same thing that Brandon
does and it's pretty exciting stuff. And after we're done with this one year service of
Americorp, I was thinking of maybe taking up Hawaiian Botany, which is the study of
Hawaiian plants and things like that. Thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Thank you very much, gentlemen. Brandon, tell hello to your mom
and your grandparents for us.
MR. LEWIS: Yeah, I will.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Thank you.
MR. LEWIS: Thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Next, is Mr. Bill Bates.
MR. BATES: Good evening, Mr. Chairman, and Members of the Council. Thank you for
coming to Kula. I just would like to mention the rna halos for helping MEO -- I'm
Bill Bates, Community Service, Community Programs Director -- and for all the support
you've given with, from transportation to Head Start to Community Service and the
Youth Bank. While I was giving testimony in Hana, I forgot to mention that the following
day Head Start opened up a working collaboration with the Hana Day Care the following
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Wednesday and opened up and providing the service in Hana again. We had a
reprieve with about a year. So, I just wanted you to know that. I'm asking for support,
that you support the Mayor's 10,000 appropriation to Long Term Care Partnership of
which I represent MEO on the steering committee. This $10,000 along with seed
money from Hale Mahaolu and Hale Makua will go toward trying to ascertain $171,000
from the Robert Wood Johnson. So, I ask that you give consideration to that. I think it's
in the Human Services Department -- the, the allocation that is. And then I'd also ask
support that, in the Budget mentions about extension of the tennis courts here in Kula,
that is much appreciated and also the work at the Sun Yet Sen. And hopefully one of
these days, I don't know where it is in the Budget but maybe Lower Kimo Drive can get
a new coat of asphalt on it one of these days. Thank you very much.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you, Bill. Bill, what was the $10,000 grant again, the name of it
please.
MR. BATES: I, I believe it's under the Robert Wood Johnson Partnership and it's working with
Hale Makua and Hale Mahaolu and then the Mayor put in $10,000 as seed or leverage
money.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Thank you very much, Bill.
MR. BATES: You're welcome. Thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Next, Rita Silva.
MS. SILVA: First, I'd like to thank the County Council for all the rides that I've received from
MEO and also from the Kaunoa Escort Service. MEO vehicles is in need of new
vehicles and more money to increase services. MEO vehicles can only be repaired to a
point after that it's no longer cost effective. The MEO Ala Hou Transportation Program
for disabled persons needs increase funding to more adequately provide transportation
for this target population. We want to and are entitled to live full lives. Transportation is
the key. I'm aware that Maui's mass transportation system is in the planning stages. I'd
like to be surprised and have adequate transportation for Upcountry in the Ala Hou
Program rather than too much focus on downtown and the resorts. Disabled persons
want to be included in transportation planning. We're willing to work hard at it free but
we're not included very much because we're not a political threat. Well, just today, we
have had a meeting at the Maui Beach Hotel and we want to organize intraisland and
intra ... intrastate so that our voices can be heard. The Makawao intersection of
Baldwin Avenue, Olinda Road, and Makawao Avenue is a fatal accident in the making.
It's only a question of time. There is an immediate need for modern high tech traffic
light at this intersection sensitive to needs of the disabled. Kaunoa Escort Service is in
need of two new employees and two cars to provide transportation services that are
currently requested by senior citizens on MauL Lahaina is underserved by Kaunoa
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Escort Service. I'm, I want to compliment you on approving a senior center being built
in West Maui because it's very badly needed. The Office on Aging area plan gave me
the following information. There are 910 seniors on Maui that need Kaunoa Escort
Service. Five hundred and seventy-seven are being served. Thank you very much.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you, Rita. Okay, before we call up the next group of young people
this evening, I'd like to also recognize from the Office of the Mayor, Mr. Arthur Suyama,
which is on that end of that hall, and next to him is Mr. Danny Mateo representing
Council Chairman Pat Kawano this evening. So thank you for being here, gentlemen.
Next, we have a nice contingent of people who want to speak for the Boys and Girls
Club of MauL So, if you would all come up. When you do speak use the microphone
and state your name for us, please.
NOTE: Pause.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, people before you start remember now, yeah, take your time. We all
friends here so don't get nervous. State your name and if you represent a specific site
like Paia or Kula or Pukalani or Makawao, state the site please.

?: ... (INAUDIBLE) ... Haiku first ... (INAUDIBLE) ...
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Haiku.
MR. COSNER: Aloha, everyone. My name is Joe Cosner and I'm the Haiku Unit Director for
the Boys and Girls Club of MauL I'm having a little difficult--okay. Most of you should
know me by now 'cause I've been doing this for the past seven years. I don't want to
stand here and read out numbers this evening but I'll give you just one. We more than
doubled our membership from 106 this time last year to 235 this year. I'll let my
Executive Director go over numbers with you later if you'd like. But our Club is jamming
right now and I feel that we've already outgrown it. I've dedicated the last seven years
of my life to this Club and it keeps getting bigger and better. At the Club, we have five
core program areas in which are character and leadership development, education and
career, health and life skills, the arts, and sports fitness and recreation. Also, our
mission is to inspire and enable all young people especially those from disadvantaged
circumstances to realize their full potential as productive, responsible, and
care ... caring citizens. I now have two success stories for you. One, we have a 13
year old girl who is not only the Maui Champion and the Hawaii State Champion but the
Southern California Regional Champion for the 2001 Punt, Pass and Kick Challenge
sponsored by the NFL and Gatorade. Her name is Alakai Kealoha. Second, we have a
10-year-old boy that was a nominee for the Governor's last Kilohana Awards for
Outstanding Volunteerism and he is here this evening and his name is Michael Mau.
So, I'd like to end here by sending out a big mahalo nu nui for all the support that you
continue to show for the Boys and Girls Club of MauL
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CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you.
MASTER KINNEY: Aloha, my name is Devin Kinney and I go to the Boys and Girls Club of
Maui in Haiku. I go to the Club because I like the programs and the staff. My friends
and I also like to play pool, go on, go on computers, get access to the Internet and
attend Power Hour. Power Hour gives us a chance to receive help on our homework
and get it done in a quiet area. I've been going to the Club for six months now and in
that short time, the Club keeps getting better. I will continue to be a member at the Club
until I become an adult. When that happens, I would like to work there because I see
what good it does for kids and I would also like to be a positive role model for kids in the
future. So, I would like to thank you for your continued support towards the Boys and
Girls Club of MauL Mahalo.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you.
MASTER FOLEY: Hi, my name is Wyatt Foley and I go to the Boys and Girls Club of Maui in
Haiku. I like going there because the staff are really great at working with kids. They
are really nice too. I really like this Club because I like all of the kids at, that go there. I
think this Club is very educated on dealing with problems. I like going on the computers
and playing pool. Those are some of my favorite things to do there. Those, the kids
and the staff are really fun to hang out with. I think this Club is the best on Maui and I
really would recommend it to all kids. I would like to thank you for your support and
believing in the Boys and Girls Club of Maui. Thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you.
MISS FULCHER: Hi, my name is Jasmine Fulcher and I go to the Boys and Girls Club of
Maui. I go to the Club because it gives me a chance to get help with my homework,
which is good for my education. They also have fun games that we play at the Club that
we normally don't get a chance to do it at home or at school. The Boys and Girls Club
of Maui is the only place for us kids to go in Haiku and without them, we would have
nothing. So, please continue to support the Boys and Girls Club of Maui because I
believe it's the place to be for kids. Thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you.
MASTER MAU: Aloha, my name is ... aloha, my name is Michael Mau and I go to the Boys
and Girls Club of Maui in Haiku. I like the Club because I get to play ping-pong, pool,
and football with my friends. But besides that I do a lot of volunteer work around the
Club like cleaning up inside and picking up rubbish outside and around the Club. I've
also gone to a charity walk with the Club and graduated from our Start Smart Group in
Smart Moves Program. Lastly, I was also a nominee of the Governor's last Kilohana
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Award for Outstanding Volunteerism. So, I hope that you can see all the good things
this Club has done for me. I would like to thank you for supporting the Boys and Girls
Club of Maui and hope that you can continue to do so. Mahalo.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you.
MISS UAIWA: Okay. Aloha, my name is Shealen Uaiwa. I am the 2001 Kilohana Award
winner. I was with the Boys and Girls Club for four and half years. The Club is very
helpful when it comes down to problems like when I had this major problem with my
family then I came to the Club then the people and staff helped me through my problem.
The other thing that is helpful in the Club is Power Hour. Power Hour is when people
have homework or need help with their homework, they come to Power Hour then the
staff will help them. If there is, if there was no Club, I would be home so bored doing
nothing. Well, I take this time to thank you for supporting us and I hope you support us
in the future. Mahalo.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you.
MISS M. FREITAS: Good evening, County Council Members, my name is Moani Freitas. I'm
14 years old and I have been going to Boys and Girls Club for about two and half years.
I would like to take this time to thank you for supporting us. I go the Club because there
is a program I attend so I can get my homework done it is called Power Hour. I go on
the outings often. It is really fun. Whenever I have problems, the Club and the
supporting staff is always there for me. Without the Club, I would be at home doing
nothing. I would be bored. Once again, I would like to thank you for supporting us and I
hope you support us in the future.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you.
MISS D. FREITAS: Hi, my name is Darnel Freitas and I am 12 years old and I go to the Boys
and Girls Club of Maui Upcountry. First of all, I would like to thank the Council for all the
support that you have given us at the Boys and Girls Club of MauL Because you
support the Club, I can do my homework on the computer, go on outings, I can be in the
art class every Thursdays, and most, and most important I have a safe place to go
when I had a problem with a stranger. If I get hurt or feel scared, I know the, the Club
will help me and if I had any problems, the Club will help me solve it. Thank you again
for your support and please support the Boys and Girls Club of Upcountry in the future.
Thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you.
MISS REZENTES: Aloha, my name is Jodie Rezentes and I, and I am 11 years old. I am a
member of the Boys and Girls Club of Maui Upcountry Club. Without, without the Club,

- 8-

BUDGET AND FINANCE COMMITTEE MINUTES
Council of the County of Maui

March 28, 2002 (2)

I don't know where I'll be, I'll be. In 2000, my dad passed away. I was sad and scared.
I was looking for something, something to help me feel better. I found the Club and the
Club helped me by getting good grades and not getting into trouble. I am thankful for
the Club and the staff. Thank you for supporting us and please support us in the future.
Mahalo.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you.
MASTER VICOSHEA: Good evening ... good evening ... good evening Coun ... Council.
My name is Josh Vicoshea and I am 11 years old. I come, come to the Club because
my mom works after school and I can do my homework there and they watch, they
watch us. The, the Club is a good place and they keep kids off the streets and drugs.
On Wednesdays, they go to the beach and I always go. Thank you for supporting us.
Thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you.
MS. TU'IVAI: Good evening, County Council Members, my name is Shawnee Tu'ivai. I'm the
Unit Director for the Upcountry Club. I'd like to start out by saying thank you on behalf
of the kids and the staff of the Upcountry Club. Here we go. I've been at the Club,
working for the Club for about eight to nine years. And outcomes to numerous to count
due to the staff who mentor, programs that work, youth of diverse backgrounds, and a
safe place to gather. Our membership stands at a solid 350 and we serve over
80 percent of our membership through monthly dances and our five program areas
which consist of health and life skills, sports and fitness, career and education, the arts,
character leadership development, and that's our areas. Each of these program areas
provide layers and layers of lessons ranging from educational to basic life skills and
when putting these elements together, my staff and I can clearly define our purpose
developing youth.
Developing youth into high school graduates, current Board
members for the Boys and Girls Club, aides to government officers, college students,
military officers, and most important responsible young people. Once again, thank you
for your support and please support us again. Mahalo.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you.
MS. RUDEW: Hello. Good evening. My name is Cathy Rudew. My son Tyler attends the
Boys and Girls Club in Makawao almost everyday. He's in the sixth grade at Kalama
middle school. The location of the Club could not be more perfect for the students at
Kalama, although students from all over the Upcountry area attend. Tyler uses the
study hall everyday after school. He's able to get any assistance he may need in his
subjects from Jason. The study hall has a program called A's Pays. This program
encourages my son to strive as high as he can and many other students do the same.
The pro ... program pays the students in script for tests, quizzes, and homework, as
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long as they get an A, which they can spend at the country's, at the Club's snack shop.
Wet Wednesday is a big hit with all the kids. A beach day in the middle of the week.
The van is always full. Tyler hasn't missed a Friday night barbeque since he's been
attending. The Community Service Day, three Saturday's a month, is wonderful. The
Boys and Girls Club allows my son to have a fun and safe, fun and feel safe. So many
working parents and guardians, we all know where these kids would be if the Boys and
Girls Club of Maui did not exist. As a working parent myself, I cannot say enough.
Thank you. Although, I'm sure there's always room for more funding and more activity.
Thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you.
MS. PODLEWSKI: Aloha, I'm Verna Podlewski and my children also attend the Boys and Girls
Club of Upcountry. I am a working parent and my husband also works for construction,
so having them in the facility saves me a lot of anguish that is my biggest worry during
the day is knowing that they're in a safe environment. I also grew up in the Clubs back
in the 70s. It was fabulous. And my youngster here is too young to be in the Club but
he is looking forward for reaching age ten so he can be an actual member. My
daughters have participated in hiking -- or will next week they'll go up to Haleakala.
They have Girls Club and taught them a lot of things that I don't have time to sit down
with them. For me, it has helped personally because I do not have the time of day to sit
with them and the staff have been more than welcome to help them with homework. I'd
say the supervision and the leadership skills have been the best for me as a parent. It's
taken a lot of the load off of me and it's been really helpful. Thank you for your support.
Aloha.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you.
MR. DAVIS: Good evening. I'd like to thank you guys for letting me speak to you on behalf of
the Boys and Girls Club of MauL My name is Dave Davis. I'm the Program Coordinator
for Smart Moves and as you probably already know that was Best Practices Program
established to eliminate alcohol, tobacco, drug use by our youth as well as postpone
early sexual activity. My job or what I've been charged with as, as the Smart Moves
Coordinator, of course, is to plan and implement our Smart Moves sessions, particularly,
under the Smart Moves umbrella, I will be running Stay Smart and Smart Leaders.
Now, the value of this, these preventative programs really can't be understated. I've
been blessed with working with a very diverse group of youth across the country. I'm a
high school, middle school, science and math teacher.
I worked with kids in
environmental education programs in Experiential Ed and back in Watsonville, California
working primarily with Latino youth; I was involved in helping start a Charter School.
And in all these experiences one thing always comes out clear, preventative strategies
are always the best in helping youth develop self-esteem, develop the skills that they
need to avoid using these illicit substances that we're trying to keep them away from.
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That's why I bought into this program. I'm a very hands-on kind of a person, that's the
way I always worked with kids in the places that I worked. And what I like about this
program is it's very hands-on and, of course, it builds the self-esteem of the kids. That's
how it deals with this, this substance abuse problem. From your perspective, the one
thing I hope that you'll focus on and what I would like to leave you with is that, this costs
nothing to all you folks. This is a State program. All the stuff, the cool things that you're
going to hear about whether it be the newspaper, word of mouth or from your fellow
Council Members or other people you know in the community, all of the things that we're
going to do is paid for. And so, what I hope that you will do is lend your support. This is
a program that's sponsored by the DOE. We've gotten their support from it. We're
working with the Maui Police Department Juvenile Section.
And I'm currently
establishing a preventative team of various professionals and other folks that work with
youth on a consistent basis to help us stay on top of the Smart Moves Program, get
trained in it and know everything that we're doing at all times so they can make it a
better, better program. Thank you. Thanks a lot. I appreciate it.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you.
MR. NISHIDA: Good evening. Good evening, everybody. My name is Kevin Nishida. I'm
here on behalf of the Boys and Girls Club. I currently serve on the Board of Directors
for the Boys and Girls Club of Maui. The Boys and Girls Club provides a positive and
safe place for kids to learn and grow. The Club offers educational and recreational
activities that provide leadership and character development experiences that will help
these kids in the future. Most importantly, the Boys and Girls Club keeps the kids out of
trouble and allows them to reach their full potential. I believe that the Boys and Girls
Club has and will continue to have a positive influence on the community and I ask for
your continued support. Thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you.
MR. HANLON: Hi, my name is Colin Hanlon. The Executive Director with the Boys and Girls
Club. And I'm not going to sit and tell you what we do. I think you've heard that
enough. You, you guys have been very supportive in the past for quite a long time. You
know what we do. I wanted to -- before I forget -- I want remember or each time to say
please help support MEO Youth Trans. A very big part of what we do gets our kids to
and from our Club and sometimes I forget to say that. So I want to make sure I put that
right up front. Two points. I just want to say kids are, they vote with their feet. They
wouldn't be at our Clubs if we weren't doing the right things. Every year we
continuously grow our program. We have not in the last ten years gone down in
programs. We've never lost kids or done less than the year before. So, we are, we are
continuously judged by the kids and they vote with their feet. They show up at the
Clubs. And the other thing, I'd like to just, is to thank you for your support in the past.
Alrighty [sic]. And the only other thing -- oh, one last thing, at the Haiku and the
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Lahaina, Haiku and Central, sorry, Makawao site, we are asking, we will be asking for
just a slight increase due to the fact that we actually are more barebones in our budget
this year than we were last year. Anything that we don't get is, is going to have an
immediate effect and since September 11th all of our cost of our insurance and
everything else is gone up about 20 percent. The only one that went up less than
20 percent was our Director's Officer's insurance went up 15 percent. So, this is an
immediate operational cost that went straight up. Thank you very much.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you, Colin. Okay, is there anyone else that is going to be speaking
on behalf of Boys and Girls Club of Maui? If not, we thank you very much for being
here. And I apologize I forgot to introduce Sheri Morrison who is from, our colleague
Charmaine Tavares' Office which represent Upcountry-Kula. So thank you for being
here, Sheri. Okay. Next, we'll have Alex Michailidis.
MR. MICHAILIDIS: Yes, my name is Alex Michailidis and I'm the Watershed Coordinator for
the East Maui Watershed Partnership. Aloha, Mr. Chairman, Budget and Finance
Committee Members, and members of the community. I've given you my testimony on
two different occasions. I see Councilmember Nishiki is here so, I'll let him hear my little
spiel as well and thanks for entertaining. I'm here today to request your support of
Mayor Apana's appropriation of $100,000 for watershed protection and also request
your support for an additional $150,000 to be added to the Mayor's Budget for all of
Maui County's Watershed Partnership protection efforts. The East Maui watershed is
comprised of 100,000 acres of native forested ecosystems, representing the largest
intact native forested area on the island of Maui. The watershed is habitat for the
world's greatest concentration of endangered birds as well as several plant and animal
species found nowhere else in the world. In addition, native forest covers are known to
be the most efficient and clean collector and distributor of surface water. Therefore,
protection of our native forest not only protects habitat for rare and endangered plants
and birds, but also provides Maui with a clean and renewable source of fresh water.
Unfortunately, feral animal disturbance and invasive weeds are degrading the native
forest ecosystem. Animal disturbance causes heavy erosion of the soil layer and
increases the potential for flooding of our streams and depth to Maui's coastal reefs.
Non-native plants then invade these disturbed areas and compete with our native plants
species. Only an intact native ecosystem, devoid of feral animal disturbance can resist
the invasion of non-native weeds. The goal of the partnership is to ensure the residents
of Maui have a clean supply of fresh water for domestic, commercial, and agricultural
uses. Our goal will be achieved by implementing and initiating several programs,
including constructing and maintaining fences, removing exotic plant and animal
species within the watershed, implementing runoff and stream protection measures, and
monitoring water quality. The current members of the partnership cannot do this work
alone and within the next several months, the partnership expects to hire up to six
employees for this task. These positions will enable individuals to gain valuable
experience in the natural resource management profession and preserve the cultural
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integrity of the East Maui's watershed. Water is a precious resource and must be cared
for. As leaders in our community, we must ensure this resource is protected so that
Maui's most precious resource, her children, can benefit from our current watershed
protection efforts. The partnership is continually pursuing other sources of funding and
is not relying solely on Maui County appropriation. However, County appropriations
increase the partnership's ability to manage the watershed and will serve as a source of
funding for employment opportunities for residents of Maui. Perhaps most importantly,
County appropriations will enable the partnership to receive matching or in-kind funds
from other federal, state, and private donor agencies. Therefore, County money will
generate additional funding opportunities for all of Maui County's watershed protection
programs. Thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you, Alex. Okay, I'm sorry I forgot to call up I believe four -- one,
two, three -- five young people that had signed up to speak from Pukalani Elementary
School. They are the Student Council Officers: Helen Orikasa, Michael Kawagishi,
Emily Gragas, Kelsey Kapisi, and Glina [sic] Hayashi.
MS. ORIKASA: Good evening, Members of the, the Maui County Council. My name is
Helen Orikasa. I'm the Principal of Pukalani Elementary School. I'm not a member of
the Student Council. I wish I were as young. Thank you for giving us this opportunity.
Since testifying on October 17th and then our subsequent SCBM meeting with
Mr. Brian Miskae, you've been very responsive to the safety needs of the Pukalani
children and I thank you very much for it. And safety remains a major issue for us and
tonight we have with us three members of the student government. We have, President
Celina Hayashi, Vice-President Kelly [sic] Kelsey Kapisi, and Treasurer Emily Gragas,
and they'll be speaking to you about our request.
MISS HAYASHI: Good evening, Honorable Members of our County Council. Thank you very
much for your time tonight and coming to listen to all of our needs for Upcountry
community. I also thank you for allowing myself and others to testify to you tonight from
my school Pukalani Elementary. For my testimony tonight, I have a letter that I would
like to read to you. Dear Honorable Council Members, my name is Celina Hayashi and
I am the Student Council President of Pukalani Elementary School. I am testifying
tonight with my fellow student council members on behalf of the 500 students that
attend Pukalani Elementary School and their parents. As you may already know
Pukalani Elementary School is located on a main thoroughfare for Pukalani residents on
lolani Street. The Pukalani community has grown tremendously over the past decade,
decade, yet this area has not been adjusted to accommodate this growth especially
around the school area for the children, teachers, and parents that go there almost
every day of the week for most of the year. Many of you are familiar with the situation
I'm sure being former educators or as parents. You realize the hectic situation of
dropping off and picking up children before and after school. It is not only school traffic.
Regular traffic for people getting into and out of the area to go to work also adds to the
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congestion. With the school conveniently located in a large residential area, many of
the students also walk to school. On lolani Street, there is no sidewalk that goes
continuously to the school and crossing this busy street is scary. With the heavy traffic
on this main street and poor walkways, our safety is compromised putting at risk
hundreds of young lives everyday each day they come to school. I have gone to
Pukalani School for almost six years now since kindergarten.
I've seen the
conges ... congestion get worse and I have also seen many near miss situations. We
feel that it is very important and necessary that something be done to provide for the
safety of the children of this school before it is, before it is to late. I humbly ask that the
County Council address this area of need by adding flashing lights and speed bumps
and do whatever is necessary to install a level of precaution to drivers for the safety of
the students and their parents in this area. Let's not wait until something really bad
happens first. We know that as Council Members you are faced with a difficult decision
and choices to provide for many other needs of our County. We feel very fortunate and
grateful that the Mayor sees the importance of safety and has included our request in
his Budget proposal to you. We hope that you will also consider this important need of
ensuring safety for all of us. We know that you care deeply about our community and
will do whatever you can to help us. We thank you for all that you have already done
and will appreciate whatever you can, you can do to provide for added safety for the
students of Pukalani Elementary School. Thank you very much for your time and kind
attention.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you, Miss Hayashi.
MISS KAPISI: Good evening, Maui County Council Members. My name is Kelsey Kapisi and
I'm Vice-President for Pukalani School's Student Council.
Thank you for this
opportunity of letting us express the concerns of Pukalani School's parents, students,
and staff. I am an officer at our student council government. We are in need of blinking
lights and speed bumps to remind drivers to drive safely near our school. There are
about 500 student who pass in and out in, of this intersection whether they are walking,
riding on school buses or in cars, and there are about 500 cars a day that cross this
path. Please do what is necessary to prevent an accident from occurring, from the
smallest accident to a tragic horrible one. On behalf of Pukalani Elementary, I would
like to thank you for hearing our concerns and hope that you will be able to help us.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you, Kelsey.
MISS GRAGAS: Hello, my name is Emily Gragas and I am the current Treasurer of Pukalani
Elementary School. Thank you, Members of the County Council, for taking your time
this evening to listen to our testimony. I fully support the request of a warning flashing
sign that indicates that they are driving in a school zone and also post the monetary
consequences for receiving citation for speeding in a school zone. Speed bumps would
also be helpful in helping the motorists to slow down. I entirely support these requests
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to ensure the safety of the roughly 500 students who attend Pukalani Elementary
School and the surrounding community members.
MS. ORIKASA: Thank you very much.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you very much. Hold on please, Ladies. We have a question from
Mr. Molina.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Hi, Ms. Orikasa. Just a quick question. Do you have any
Police monitoring the speeding during the morning and afternoon traffic?
MS. ORIKASA: There used to be one but I think there's, there's shortage of Officers and we
no longer have that officer there.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Have you made a request for ...
MS. ORIKASA: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Uh-huh. And you haven't received any ...
MS. ORIKASA: No.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: ... response. Okay. Thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Maybe one of the Officers can answer. Maybe we can have the President,
Celina. Celina, do you know how many of your fellow students walk to school?
MISS HAYASHI: No, I don't.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Ms. Orikasa, you have a sense of 20 percent of your enrollment would walk
to school ...
MS. ORIKASA: I'd say about 30.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thirty percent. And you have a school population of 500 about.
MS. ORIKASA: About 500 ... 498.
CHAIR HOKAMA: ... (laughter) ... We'll round it off to 500.
MS. ORIKASA: Okay.
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CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Any other questions for our ladies this evening? If not, thank you
very much for being here this evening with us.
MS. ORIKASA: Thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you. Is there a Patty Vaiana here? She wanted to speak regarding
the Youth Boys and Girls. If not, okay, we're going to move on to Keith Pocock,
Humane Society.
MR. POCOCK: Good evening, my name is Keith Pocock, the Executive Director of the Maui
Humane Society. Thank you for this opportunity to address our budget issues. I've
submitted a report. It's the same report that we used when we testified previously at all
the Mayor's hearings and it's been provided along with a copy of all of the services
provided by the Humane Society. Since you have that report, I just want to hit a couple
of the points. First of all, I'd like to stress that while we are labeled the animal people,
and we're very proud of that label, we serve all the people, those with animals and
those without. We address the needs, concerns and complaints of everyone who calls
us that is to the best of our ability and within our limited resources. The shortage of
funding leaves us supporting the County in most of the areas that we service. I know
that that was one of the questions proposed at the Paia testimony that our Shelter
Manager Clare Sheehan was at. Just some of the things that are happening at the
shelter is the doors are literally falling off the shelter due to termites. We've had to
replace six doors recently and it wasn't really in our budget because we live on such a
shoestring budget trying to make ends meet. The other thing that we actually need to
do County work is a isolation impound kennel. Due to County ordinances, we often
impound dogs due to violations of laws and ordinances and unfortunately some of these
impounds have lasted over a year and not just one or two dogs but more. And what that
does is it, it just creates more of a problem for the Humane Society in trying to save as
many animals as we can because there is no provision or facility for us to keep these
dogs. We have tried to get a price to build this but contractors want to know how much,
you know, what are we looking at and we haven't had the opportunity to be able to go
out and pay for this service. We are looking for a volunteer who would be willing to
draw this up and we were fortunate enough to have someone volunteer the services
to ... so that we were able to build a new cat building. We were able to have an
architect draw up the plans, go to the County and actually get us the permit, which was,
which was something that was very fortunate for us. There are other issues that are
contained in the report such as the need for trucks and additional ACO's for better
coverage and additional coverage. And that's for your reading pleasure so I'll leave you
to that. So, I ask you please support your Maui Humane Society. Thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you, Mr. Pocock. Any questions for Mr. Pocock this evening? Okay.
Thank you very much, Keith. Next, we have Lisa Haole.
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MS. HAOLE: Good evening. My name is Lisa Haole. I'm the Animal Control Coordinator for
the Maui Humane Society. I've been there 13 years and tonight I'm just asking for your
continued support for our budget so that we may continue to offer the services we do for
Maui County. Thank you very much.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you, Lisa. Also, with the Humane Society, we have ... is this Don or
Lon?
?: Lori ...
CHAIR HOKAMA: Lori, I'm sorry, Lori Coad .... (CHANGE TAPE) . ..
MS. COAD: My name is Lori Coad and I work in the front office for the Humane Society. I've
been there for about seven years working also in the Vet. staff. I answer about a
gazillion phone calls a day and fortunately I am able to assist most people with their
needs but there is a growing number of calls that I am unable to help due to staffing
shortages in the ACO Department and whatnot. It's very ... I have to say with a heavy
heart to tell people, no, I'm sorry I can't help you with that. We don't have the staff for
that. No, I'm sorry, you know, we have to say that couple times everyday and the
people on the other end of the line they just, they don't understand why. They say, why,
you're the Humane Society, aren't you supposed to do this? You're animal control. Oh,
I'm sorry, I can't get that loose turtle in your yard. I'm sorry I can't get that mama cat
and her babies. And unfortunately, a lot of the people that are making these calls that I
have to say no to are senior citizens who cannot get out in the yard and restrain that
loose dog, that loose cat. And we'll just ask for your continued support in our growing
needs both financially and in animal control. Thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you, Lori. Next, we have Kelly Maguire. You want to carry her?
MS. MAGUIRE: Yeah, well, I didn't know if that was very professional or not.
CHAIR HOKAMA: That's okay. If it will make it easier on her.
MS. MAGUIRE: She'll be fine. I'm a nervous speaker anyway so it will be very brief. My
name is Kelly Maguire. I work for the Maui Humane Society. I'm the Veterinary
Technician there. I've been there for ten years now and like Lori and Lisa and Keith,
they're very frustrated by the shortages of staff and the abilities that we are trained to do
but cannot do because of the funds available to us. So, keeping in mind that I'm a
nervous speaker, I'll cut it short and just let you know that I am here tonight in person to
tell you that I really appreciate your support in the past and I really will appreciate your
support in the future for our budget. Thank you very much.
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CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you, Kelly. Okay. Next, we have Lisa Schattenburg-Raymond. And
after Lisa, we have Kiope Raymond.
MS. SCHATTENBURG-RAYMOND: Aloha, Council Members. Boy, it's been a while since I've
been here. First, before I talk I'm Lisa Schattenburg-Raymond with the Maui Nui
Botanical Gardens. And before I talk about the Gardens, I want to applaud Americorp. I
have one fulltime and one part time Americorp volunteers and Amber Rohner spoke with
you folks at the Paia meeting and you'll hear from Katy Bell at the Kihei meeting -- let
me see Paia, at the Paia and then Kihei. They have just been an amazing addition to
our little struggling nonprofit. They're like my right arms. I don't know what I would do
without 'em and I'm hoping that once, they'll be with us until August. They started in
November and it's just been such a wonderful program. I've already been talking with
Jim Crowe about cloning them for next year or, you know, if I could get other volunteers
of that caliber. It's, it just really has been an amazing boon for us with our, with our
limited staff. I also want to applaud the Community Work Day. They have been so
supportive with our project as we've started up the restoration of the Botanical Garden.
Sharing paint and equipment, and they've supported volunteer programs that we've had
and they, you know, Jan has just been an amazing resource for us and terrific work. I
also ... I'm a heavy user of the Humane Society. We have been trying to reduce our
feral cat population. We trap one or two cats a week and I have to call them regularly
and they come and pick them up. And we also have been trapping the peacocks that
were left from the zoo that have discovered our plant nursery and eaten everything in it.
So, we're reducing that population and hoping to completely get rid of those. So, we're
all in this together. But I want to talk about the Botanical Garden. We have been there
since July 1S\ so we're just looking at our first nine months, and just wanted to let you
know we have already exceeded my wildest dreams. We have done so many things in
this nine months that I'm going to share a few with, with you but it's amazing how much
we have been able to impact the community and, and other islands too. We have been
doing job training and, and creating volunteer opportunities. We have had a nine-week
intern through the Maui Community College Kuina Program. A young man from Molokai
who is now working in the environmental task force with the Dengue and all this stuff,
he's been assigned up at Haleakala. He was terrific. We currently have a young man
who's getting his GED from the Queen Liliuokalani Children Center, and they have a Na
Opio Program, and he's going to be with us until August and that's very exciting. We
have our Americorp volunteers. We've also, are a site for the high school to do student
service learning and they come, we've had a lot of students from Baldwin that have
come down regularly now. We do regular Saturday volunteer days and we've had
groups like the Native Hawaiian Plant Society, The Maui Sierra Club, a brownie troop,
and the Alternative Learning Center at Baldwin come down and do volunteer work for
us. We also have a fulltime mentally and physically handicapped adult that has been
working with us and we really enjoy him a lot. And he, his physical and, and emotional
improvement since the time that he's been with us, which has been about four months
now, is just really remarkable and we're really lucky to have him come and help us.
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We've been doing capital improvements. We have our office trailer that's been set up
and a deck is being built through a grant from the Mcinerney Foundation and that is all
being done with volunteer labor. With the Mayor's CIP Grant from last year, we got our
maintenance equipment in October so everything's looking a lot better. The Water
Department, the Maui Board of Water Supply is funding the construction of our plant
nursery. We did a temporary nursery and we just got the building permit two weeks ago
to do the permanent one. The shade house is about 90 percent complete. The, the
green house will be built when that one is finished. We've had two service groups from
the mainland come. One, a Americorp group that had about 13 folks and they came
from, they were, each one was from a different state. They did, they painted all the
buildings for us and they did a whole bunch of cleanup. They were really fabulous. We
also had a group from the Sierra Club. They do this vacation service learning kind of a
thing. They came down and they cleaned a whole ditch for us and, and they were really
fabulous and had a tour of the Garden and they really enjoyed it. They want to make
that a regular thing for, for this ... I guess they, they do several groups a year and so
they want to make the Garden a regular stop. In conservation, which is one of the most
important things that the Garden does, we donated 150 Gardenia brighamii, which is an
endangered species from Lanai to, we sent those over to The Nature Conservancy over
there for out planting. Their seed source had been stolen last year and so they were
really low on stocks and we just happened to have quite a few and gave them as many
as they could take. We are also working with the US Geological Survey. The Biological
Resources Division of Haleakala, Haleakala National Park, they are doing a dry forest
restoration project in Puu 0 Kali. The Hibiscus brackenridgei population that used to be
there is now extinct. This is in the dry forest area just down below here. Fortunately,
the National Tropical Botanical Garden on Kauai had collected 97 seeds and 5
seedlings were taken last year from the site. They, the plants that were there have been
completed annihilated by deer. This area is now being fenced. They just did the
bulldozing last weekend and should be fenced by the end of the summer. We were
lucky enough to have from that seeds and from those seedlings, we have about 20
plants now. That is the remaining genes bank of that population and I'm just really
excited that the Botanical Garden was open and, and could receive those plants. They
are flowering now. They are seeding and once we get that seed over the next few years
that will go directly back out and be reestablished out there. We have given 800 Hala
seedlings to the Kanaha Pond Restoration. Hundred and eighty seed, Pili Grass
seedlings went to Kahoolawe and the Americorp volunteers actually planted them. So
that was kind of funny. They, they got to go, kind of go full circle. We're, we're getting
collections of Taro from the Ag Extension up, up in Kula. The Hawaii Agriculture
Research Center sent us 32 varieties of Hawaiian Sugar Cane just a couple of weeks
ago and that is going to be an amazing collection when that goes into the ground.
We've been, we've given away over a thousand plants in, in the last nine months to a
number of community programs.
Kanaha Pond, Kanaha Beach, which is the
Community Work Day Program. Kamaole Point did a restoration. We're currently
giving away Noni plants this year. We've already given away 100 at the Hoomau last,
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last weekend and we'll probably be able to give away another 2 or 300. And they're free
to anybody who wants to adopt a plant 'cause we get so many requests at the Garden
for Noni we want to get more resources out in the community. We give a lot of tours to
the Community College and you'll be getting some letters from the St. Anthony
kindergarten and second grade students, which their teachers did a National Science
Foundation Grant teaching the kids about native plants. We had 50 of them come to
the Garden. It was the most fun we've ever had and this was our first big group. And
they're going to be sending you some letters about their experiences there. We've
given tours to the Brownies groups, to Kaunoa Senior Pace Setters, Sierra Club, and
we also give free horticultural advice to any nonprofit that's, that's looking for help.
We've worked with the Maalaea Community Garden, the Koko Gorilla Foundation, the
A & B Sugar Museum, Hana Cultural Center, Lahainaluna High School, and the Whale
Sanctuary. We've had four successful plant sales. We have received private donations
in last year about $15,000, and this year already we're received 15,000 in grants, and
we expect another 35,000 before ... in about three months. So, that, we're, we're
doing good on the grant fundraising. We have at least four playgroups that meet at the
Garden regularly. A couple have, one is the State supported Baby Hui, another one is
with Alu Like, and other one's are community groups or parent groups that that get
together. The playground is very heavily used.
?: That's all.
MS. SCHATIENBURG-RAYMOND: We, we hosted the Maui Sierra Club's annual meeting,
hosted the Plain Air Painters. They came and did a day long painting at the Garden.
We did a reunion party for the Good Beginnings Alliance. We hosted the, the
Punana Leo's Hoomau last weekend. We expanded that event into the Botanical
Garden that was the first time we've done that and it was very successful. And we also
have been adopted by an adult handicapped day care group that's now is meeting twice
a week at the Garden and we've been having a lot of fun with them. So, we've been
doing a lot in nine months and it's really amazing how much the community is involved
with the Garden. We, we were kind of low key for about six months while we did a lot of
restoration in the Garden but we had a article come out in the Maui News in December
and since then things are really taking off. We get calls every week. And one last thing
I want to share with you this, this happened today. Pua Van Dorp(?) is a, is the
Statewide Tapa Specialist. She's being working with Bishop Museum for over 25 years
researching -- if you've ever read an article on, on Kapa, it mentions Pua. The - that we have at the Botanical Garden is the best that's she's ever used. It was collected
from lao Valley and so we've been able to share it with the Amy Greenwell
Ethnobotanical Garden in Kona where she's from. But today she came by the Garden
and we were able to, to talk with her about some of the dye work that we've done at the
Garden with the plants from there. And, you know, this, this is new stuff for her and she
was so impressed by that and she's going to be going to Stanford in another month and
doing a workshop and we were just able to compare research. And I just really feel, you
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know, that that's really exciting when we can offer somebody of that caliber something
that that really is going to further her research too. So, that's it. So, I hope you support
us. We're in the Budget for 80,000 under Economic Development. And thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you, Lisa.
MS. SCHATIENBURG-RAYMOND: Come and visit.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Lisa, where, where are all these wild peacocks that you're snaring?
MS. SCHATIENBURG-RAYMOND: They were left from the zoo when the zoo closed and
they're all female. Thank, thank goodness. So, I think we're down to two or three now.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Thank you. Kiope, before you come up, I would like to bring in a
young person so that she can get back to her family requirements. So, Ka'ili Moikeha,
why don't you come and tell us what you want to say tonight.
MISS MOIKEHA: Good evening. I am member -- my name is Ka'ili Moikeha. I am a member
of the Boys and Girls Club of Maui. I am the, I am a President of the Torch Club and of
my age group, nine through eleven. What we do in the Torch Club is we do community
service projects. The past, this past year, what we did was we did, we went to Kahului
and we went to pick up some rubbish along the roads in Kahului, and then during
Christmas we went up to Wailuku Elementary School and did a Santa's Workshop. And
then recently, we finished planting shrubs and flowers up at the County Building and
they're growing. And I would, I would like to thank the County for their support with the
Boys and Girls Club. I think they did a lot for the Boys and Girls Club and I've been to
all the Clubs on Maui. I think there's, that every Club on Maui is safe and is fun. I
WOUld, I would like to ask the County to keep supporting the Boys and Girls Club of
Maui like they are. And thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you. You want to just tell us something?
MR. MOIKEHA: Well, I wanted to express our thanks and appreciation for all the support not
just for the Boys and Girls Club but for all the youth centers as well. We've had the
opportunity, my kids have had the unique opportunity of being I could say visitors,
guests of all the youth centers on the island with the partial exception of Hana. Every
time we're in Hana, we're not able to make it out there. But they've been able to find a
comfortable place for them to participate in different youth activities and they've grown
very much so because of their association with these different youth centers. And
basically, it was through support of the County that makes it possible for them to do that
and I've seen the growth in them because of that and how much they appreciate that.
We've always been a service, community service type of family. Try to get them
involved in that type of activities and because of that, this has provided a really good
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venue for them. And without your continued support, it would be a little bit more difficult
but we would find something else that we can try to contribute as well. I appreciate it
very much. Thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you for coming.
MR. MOIKEHA: Thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Next, Kiope, if you would come and give us your thoughts please.
MR. RAYMOND: My name is Kiope Raymond. Aloha. I'm Lisa Schattenburg-Raymond's
husband, and as an educator, I certainly have to second what all the, the youth have
been asking for tonight, the youth involved in Boys and Girls Clubs and the safety
issues at Pukalani. Lisa and I are residents of Waiakoa, Kula and so first of all I want to
say I am in favor of the Budget recommendations therein for the year 2003. I certainly
hope that everything stays on track and I think it's slated for 2004 that we have the
Upcountry Police Station. I think that's absolutely necessary for Upcountry. But I
signed up tonight representing Maui Community College to speak on behalf of the Maui
Nui Botanical Gardens. The Maui Community College is currently in a time of change.
We're moving towards the two plus four, hopefully moving towards some baccalaureate
degrees but we will also retain certainly our AA and AS degrees. One of the associate
of science degrees that we would hope to move toward is a degree in Ethnobotany.
It's ... it's imperative that we have a place for students in higher education to get
practical application hands-on knowledge in the areas of botany, field biology, Hawaiian
ethnobotany, and just applications in the culture. And so, now that, and you've just
heard Lisa testify that all of it kind of comes together at the Maui Nui Botanical Garden
and it's, it's a perfect place for our students. Many of whom are also employed and do
not have the opportunities to get far out into the field. And so, to be able to get to the
Botanical Garden in, in a timely fashion and then get back to the classes is really
wonderful. So, I want to thank you all for your past support of the Maui Nui Botanical
Gardens. I know it's, it's been overwhelmingly something that the, the Council has
always found favor with and I'm real glad for the Administration's inclusion of 80,000 in
the Economic Development area. I, I hope that that moves forward with, with your
folkses [sic] blessing. The current or Acting Provost Flo Wigert will be sending you an
official letter from the Community College. You've received the same kind of letter in the
past from Dr. Clyde Sakamoto and we know that that it can be a very, very positive
relationship. As Dr. Sakamoto once taught me, it's, it's the term that the Community
College uses town and gown. The gown relationship is the academic regalia and the
town is the community. And so, this is a wonderful town and gown opportunity and I
thank you all.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you, Kiope. Questions? Okay, seeing none. Thank you very much.
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MR. RAYMOND: Mahalo.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Next, we have Tony Durso.
MR. DURSO: Good evening. Thank you for the opportunity to testify. My name is
Tony Durso. I'm representing the Maui Cattlemen's Association. I'm here tonight to ask
for your continued support, with a stress on continuation, in the association's efforts to
eradicate or control Fireweed on Maui. We have received money last year and that
money is going, has been matched by funds from NRCS as well as private landowners.
And those monies are currently being used to treat approximately 500 acres of affected
property. The situation is that the grant funds will likely be exhausted and by their
appropriate time, which I know is a concern, and that means that we will need continued
funding for next year. For those of you who don't know what it looks like just take a look
out your right hand window when you drive up Haleakala Highway, it's all that beautiful
yellow flower that everyone thinks it's very pretty. It's not. For those of you who don't
know what that flower does, it slowly -- actually not slowly -- it spreads like fire of
course. It takes over pasture and renders it useless for grazing livestock. So, those of
you who like the open spaces on Maui, I'm sure that's most of you, please continue to
support this program. My understanding is that there is a current line item included in
the Budget and please leave it in there. It's going to good use and will continue to do
so. If you have any questions, I'd be happy to answer them.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Questions for Mr. Durso? Have you been able to solicit any type of
support from the State?
MR. DURSO: Currently, we are in the process of working with both Representative Abinsay,
who's the Chair of the House Ag Committee and Senator Buen, who is the Chair of the
Senate Ag Committee. And right now, we have one bill that's still alive and it is going to
be heard, excuse me, it's coming up for hearing probably this week. And that will
hopefully, and all indications are good right now that it will be passed out of Finance
Committee, excuse me, Ways and Means -- no, Finance Committee at full funding
which is 50,000 which would be the matching funds which the County grant stipulates.
So, the answer is yes but I can't say definitively yes.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you, Tony.
MR. DURSO: Thanks.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Next, we have Elliott Krash.
MS. KRASH: Good evening, Chairman Hokama, and Members of the Council, and other staff
representatives and Council reps. My name is Elliott Krash and I'm speaking tonight for
the Kula Community Association and like everyone else I want to thank you for being
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here. Thank you for listening in your Chambers, in your Committee Members, and
especially up here. I think it's so rewarding to see coming out here, people who can't
make it downtown during the day and you hear from such a cross section of us in the
community when you come out to, to our place and we appreciate it. What I've
provided you tonight is a two-page summary of budget requests and attached to it is a
copy of our last Kula Community Association newsletter. I thought that you might be
interested in the latest census data that's on the back of that and I also wanted to call
your attention to the article at the top of that page on 24-hour ambulance service. And
I'll say a little bit more about that in a, in a minute here. Let me begin by calling your
attention to Page 2 of our budget list and that's a big mahalo. Because when I was
preparing for the Budget hearings back in October and today, I went back over all of the
requests and priority lists that our association had put together since '95 looking at
specific items and categories of items. And these are just a few of the things I pulled
out that that we've accomplished or that we're making progress on that we're moving
towards working together the Administration, the Council, various committees and
groups, and the, and the community association. Let me call your attention to the
ambulance, the safety item and the ambulance hours and community police officer.
Ambulance hours you've helped us in the past. I know this isn't a County budget item
but your help has been essential in working with the State Government to get funding
and now we're in danger of losing the 50,000 that we received last year. It's in Senate
Ways and Means now. So, we need your help once again on that and thanks to
Bob Carroll and Councilmember Nishiki and others who have lobbied, written letters
and, and helped us on that. We appreciate it. Our request this year ... as always our,
our priority issues Upcountry are water, ambulance service, other safety issues. As I
mentioned those aren't your kuleana that's the Board of Water Supply Budget but
you've helped us there in supporting and lobbying for, for better management and better
prioritization and, and, and supporting their request for fund increases.
Police
recruitment and community police officer. We know that there have been problems in
the past but there's been wonderful progress made in the recruitment efforts and we
appreciate anything you can do to sustain the funding to keep the recruitment up and to
sweeten the pot to retain the officers when we get them. We really want to have our
community police officer back in our community. We've been without him now for two
years. And you've heard the problem just tonight from the Pukalani Elementary children
and from others in the community about the need to have someone on site.
Randy Burgess who covers Pukalani and tries to cover Kula is kind of stretched kind of
thin and we hope you can help us out there by keeping up the reo ..the funding to, to
maintain recruitment. Let me focus on another important issue that's emerged just in
the last couple of years and that's planning and, and transportation. I believe in the
Budget there's a request for one more position, and there were a couple in there last
year that were funded for long range planning and we appreciate that but I, I wonder if
just one position is enough to accomplish everything that the Department has specified
that that they want to do. They have a significant list of, of goals that they've listed in, in
the Budget and ... it's, it's a lot of work for just a small division of long range planning.
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And as our County has grown, we see the, the significance of having long range
planning so that we can address these issues of water, planning, development. These
are items that repeatedly our community members tell us are priority issues for them.
They turn out at meetings on planning and development and water. They respond on
surveys that we submit to them and call us and contact us with concerns and issues in,
in this area. So, we're pleased that you and the Administration are addressing the
problems we have in this area and anything additional that you could do that might help
there we'd appreciate it. Steve Sutrov and others are going to address some of the
parks environmental and open space ... space issues but let me just echo what a
couple of other speakers have said regarding the, the environmental issues. Again, our
community has turned out in force for the meetings where we have had speakers on the
agenda about alien species, native plants, et cetera, lot of concern about environmental
and open space issues.
And we would support the environmental workforce
continuation. I believe there's 100,000 in, in the Budget for that. Anything we can do to,
to help that. You've heard testimony on that tonight. And one item that's not on our list
but you've heard from a speaker this evening is for the watershed protection and our
association is participating in other meetings where this has been a topic of discussion
and a concern. I'd be happy to answer any questions.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Anything for Elliott this evening? If not, we're always happy to see
you, Elliott. Thank you very much for being here.
MS. KRASH: Thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Next, we have Steve Sutrov.
MR. SUTROV: Did you call my name?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yes, Steve. It's your turn.
MR. SUTROV: Alright. Good evening and welcome to Kula. And my name is Steve Sutrov
and I'll be, I'll speak briefly for the Kula Community Association. And I'd like to thank
you all for all the hard work you do and the frustrations and the joys you experience in
your jobs 'cause I understand some of 'em now. I mean try to be more in touch with
what's happening. Elliott was talking about a lot of what our association is concerned
about here and she wanted me to elaborate a little bit on trails, bikeways, parks, and
open space. Yeah, I think we definitely need to complete the Upcountry greenway trails
master plan and try to start implementing it. It does give us alternative means of
transportation plus recreation. It's very important for our Kula community, Upcountry
community. Continue planning and regional small parks in conjunction with trails and
bikeways. In our community plan it states to, to try to implement small parks in, in out of
the way residential areas in our Upcountry community along with a 50-acre regional
park. Now, the regional park idea for Upcountry isn't very, isn't very possible, I don't
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think, unless you're dealing with thinking about Makawao or maybe Pukalani's parks
being a regional park but I don't think that's the concept thought, thought about when
they, when they put that in the community plan. And, but to think about a 50-acre
community park, regional park in Kula, I don't think it's possible. I don't, I don't think
there's enough land that's level enough to utilize efficiently and for what it would cost, I
don't think the benefits would, would really be worthwhile. But I do think having smaller
parks of different uses in, in different areas is what we have to try to accomplish. Like
this park here, it's, I'm not sure how, I think it's about 6 acres. The Parks Department is
coming up next week to -- they invited the community -- to master plan this park. I'll be
talking just a little bit about a proposal for additional tennis courts here. But I think that's
what we have to look at ... different areas to, to have different uses maybe eventually a
swimming pool but I don't know if it's really necessary now. Pukalani's used ... you can
always find an open lane down there to swim. But, and as far as more ball fields, I don't
think we really, we really -- we could use 'em but to find a flat, flat area I'm not sure if
that would be ... something we could find in Kula. But as far as passive type parks for
the kids to play or parks where people can walk from their residential areas to or ride
their bike or skateboard to or a skateboard park has been suggested also, which ... to
keep the kids off the tennis courts for one thing. But to, to give them a place to go on
their own and to have a place that is ... someplace and they, they can take care of and
be their spot to get some good exercise and enjoy themselves rather than just hanging
out. So, that's, that's what that would be taking into consideration. And to set aside and
purchase a open space, I think that's important. I think it's an issue that's going to be
discussed when the Charter amendments come up too that, we have to start really
looking at preserving the open space not only for ourselves but for the visitors because
that's what Maui is all about. That's why we all, people have moved here, people still
live here, and people come here to visit, it's because of our open space. And that
means protecting our agricultural lands too but we're talking about open space for
possibly recreational use or just for view plains. Okay, that, that's it for Kula Community
Association. For ...
CHAIR HOKAMA: Change your hat now.
MR. SUTROV: I'd like to pass this around just real quick.
CHAIR HOKAMA: You change your hat, Steve.
MR. SUTROV: Pardon me.
CHAI R HOKAMA: Are you changing hats?
MR. SUTROV: Yeah.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay.
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MR. SUTROV: I'm, I've been trying to, this is my fifth budget meeting I've talked to the
Administration and Council in trying to ... get everybody thinking along the lines of, of
at least two more tennis courts in this facility here. The two courts we have are
beautiful. It's like these courts, what we have right now is like paddling out into a surf
break in early morning with no wind and it's breaking and you're out there by yourself or
maybe with a couple other people. Or a golf course where you can smell the greens
after they just mowed in early morning and no wind and sun, you know, just maybe a
light cloud and just hitting a perfect drive and, or a perfect putt. You know it's, just a
place to play tennis up here is an ideal perfect environment for tennis. Last year, maybe
there was ten days out of the whole year where you couldn't play tennis up here. Now,
the farmers didn't like that but the people in Kula that play tennis or the people that
travel from Kihei -- there's a team from Kihei that comes up here to practice once a
week. There's people that come from Haiku, Huelo. There are people that come from
Kihei, I mean, town and even people from Lahaina that visit people up here, come up
here just to play tennis in Kula because it's the ideal environment for tennis. We knew
when those two courts were built that it wasn't going to be enough besides recreational
use. Two more courts, four total, you can have youth programs. You need the courts
first before you can plan for that kind of activity. We need the courts, four, at least four
courts, to be able to plan for any type of league play. For the high schools to have
league play up here. For some high schools, some private schools, they don't have
courts. And so, to have four courts ... the league play, USTA sanction tournaments
also for -- I've, I've been a captain of a senior league team for couple years now, guys
from 50 to 70, over 70 years old on my team. We have to travel and be home, our
home court is Wells Park. People never get to experience how nice it is to play up here.
To have two courts up here more, we could have league play. The juniors could have
league play up here. They could have a juniors form up here, league form up here, and
it would happen and I'd make sure it happened. I, I don't have kids that play
tennis ... and moving out soon but I WOUld, I would definitely promise this, you right
now that I'll do whatever I can if we had two more courts or more eventually that there
will be youth play up here. There will be a youth league up here and, and it will
be ... the place everybody wants to come and play. What I have here is a, a just a
quick petition I gathered in a month in a half last year to give it to the Mayor during his
Budget meeting but I also wanted to give it to you. I only have one copy but I'd like to
submit to you.
And what it, what it says in the front, the cover page is
geo ... geographically Kula is a large sprawling community. Additional courts would help
service not only Kula but also the greater Upcountry community, people who travel all
over to play up here. And the location, having courts separate from a larger complex.
Like, what happens to, to Makawao's tennis courts is that it's right next to the ball fields.
Every Saturday, Sunday you get thousands playing soccer or softball and the courts get
in trouble because of that. They're not supervised and they get run over. Up here,
you're dealing with a separate entity and they can be managed and maintained much
better. And so, Kula is ideal for that reason also. It's good for all, all ages like I say.
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You can play it and keep, keep yourself entertained and fit all your life. It's, the weather
up here is ideal and you can ... (cough) ... and for lessons too. You need at least four
courts so you can have maybe two, two for lessons and two for the public to still have
open to play when they want to play. So, I'll submit this to you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Thank you, Steve.
MR. SUTROV: You can just all look at it or pass it or ... and I had ... also that that's, that's
about all that I have to say. I, I had people that wanted to show up tonight that couldn't
from USTA from downtown that are with the youth leagues. One vice-president is off
island, the president had to work tonight. But I, I plan to have them contact you in the
near future and they want to talk to you or e-mail you or, and send you their, their
recommendations on this. Also, one gentleman who's been asking for courts in
Haiku ... he, he says he supports these courts. Anybody that plays tennis here
supports more courts on Maui everywhere because it helps with the whole mix of having
places for more people to play, pick up the game, get better, and then have competition
in other areas. So, please consider leaving the money in, in, into Budget this year. You
won't be sorry, it will be an amenity for, for everyone on Maui here. Thank you very
much.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you, Steve. Okay. And what Mr. Sutrov was referring to for those
that are interested is a $350,000 ... submittal by Mayor Apana for two additional Kula
courts. Okay. Next, we have Chelsea Hill.
MS. HILL: My name is Chelsea Hill and I'm representing my company, Origin-The Language
Agency. We are a translation company that is a member of the high tech community in
Maui and I'm here to support continued funding for the Maui Economic Development
Board, MEDB. The Maui Economic Development, the MEDB -- that's easier -- has been
running all kinds of, excuse me, has been running all, a diverse number of programs to
support high tech and bring high tech businesses to Maui but also bringing high tech
businesses already here bringing us together. A lot of us don't, didn't even know that
we existed here. By virtue of our business, we do everything on line and do business
with people all over the country and all over the world, and through the MEDB we've
learned about each other existence here and have been networking and developing
synergy here and also improving the economic situation here in the County and the
State. Also, the MEDB produces this newsletter called the High Tech Maui newsletter
and they distribute it all over the State and also to high tech centers on the mainland
including Silicone Valley and Seattle. And my company was featured this, in this issue
and we've already had a great number of calls from other high tech businesses in the
Seattle and Silicone Valley areas and this is developing our network and our business
potential. So, I just wanted to come out and support the MEDB and their efforts in this
area. Thank you.
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CHAIR HOKAMA: How long have you been operating, Chelsea?
MS. HILL: Three years, just over three years. We started in October of 1998 in Kula actually.
We're now located in Makawao.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Well, congratulations.
MS. HILL: Thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you for being here this evening. Next, we have Rick Champion.
And we also have Mr. Arakawa joining us this evening. Thank you, Alan.
MR. CHAMPION: My name is Rick Champion, and I live in Pukalani and I lived up here for a
long time. And the last time I had an opportunity to speak to this august panel was with
Steve a few years ago prior to freeing up the money to, to make these two wonderful
courts up here. And I've been a tennis pro now for over 40 years and I totally agree with
Steve this is the best place in the world to play tennis. It's incredible up here. If you can
imagine never get the sun in your eyes, the temperature is always right and the wind
never blows, so it's a good deal. The good news is I'm able to say that I could probably
represent by proxy at least 200 to 250 adults and juniors that I've worked with over the
years to help them with their tennis, and met them on the court and played with them
that are mainly from Upcountry area and of course the new courts have helped. But the
sad news is, is that had we had a real facility up here to, to play tennis like we have all
over Maui. All the other major community centers, even Hana, has six courts. Kihei's
got well over, they've got five in one location plus four at another location just blocks
away so you can run a tournament there. Same thing in Lahaina, same thing in
Wailuku, same thing in Kahului. And my question is how come not up here? I mean up
here is where we have the ideal conditions, down there the conditions stink, you know,
that's the truth. And it's wonderful to be able to go down there and certainly the kind of
experience -- tennis is a social game. Tennis isn't a question any more than having a
soccer field over here and not having any soccer association. Nothing is going to
happen. And two courts over here and one over here and one over there, you can't
make anything happen. Tennis is a game for a lifetime. How many of you still play
soccer? How many -- any of you tennis players? Yeah, tennis is called a game for a
lifetime for a very good reason. Tennis players last a very long time. If you look at
tennis magazine and look at the obituary column, it's pretty amazing. One hundred and
five, hundred two, you know, all over the place. It lasts a long time. Tennis is a game,
it's the only game that I know of that starts love-love and we're talking about some real
object lessons here that are learned on a tennis court. When you go out there with
short pants on, you haven't got anybody to lean on. You got to, you got to play the
game. You have to do it with, with the best of your ability. You have to learn to be a
good winner and a good loser and we're seeing that internationally now. We're seeing
great examples in our, our young people, in our Andy Roddocks(?) and people like that
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that are playing tennis in this country and for this country. We're not seeing very many
John McEnroe's anymore. And so, tennis is a game that really will help. And I know
that Steve has been consistent. I know that I've been consistent about helping to bring
the game to the next level up here. But Maui, I'll tell you, if this Coun ... Coun ... County
would ever get together and do what's been done in the mainland all over the place. I
have all kinds of professional friends over there that manage publicly created tennis
programs. In Phoenix, I have a friend Bob Folts(?) who manages two, two, two facilities
for the City of Phoenix. Twenty-two courts in one, 24 in the other and the City of
Phoenix pays nothing. Everything is generated out of that facility because tennis, and
this is one thing that Steve had eluded to, the, the facts are that from six courts on up
you can, you can, you can dry the ink. You won't have, you won't have to support that
thing anymore not if you make a good contract with the service provider that's in the,
that's in the tennis field. And that isn't to take away tennis from the public, it's to add
tennis to the public. That's what happens when you have a well run facility. So, I'd
really encourage the Council to, to take a look at this project as it is. Get a couple more
courts up here. And I was talking with Steve and my recommendation would be save
that money. I can't even conceive a $350,000 cost for these two courts. I can't
conceive of that. I just built a court at my house down at Pukalani. I had a lot of work I
had to do it myself. I built it for 35,000. .., (CHANGE TAPE) . .. How in the world do
you get ten times that much and, you know, I know we have a lot of rock up here to blow
and stuff like that but I think there's some, I think there's some ways to take a look at
that situation. When I, when I left the mainland I was a Parks and Recreation Director
for the city that I, of Cottonwood, that I lived in. We built courts in 1983 in Cottonwood,
five municipal courts, the best quality courts -- the kind of courts that they have down at
the Four Seasons -- $60,000 because we had, we had public support but only $60,000
came out of the Budget basically. Five lighted courts with the kind of lighting that
Steve's talking about, no bleed off lighting, not the stuff over here that you can see for
miles and it's cheaper and it can be done. And what my recommendation would be to
build the courts that he's talking about and take the money that's necessary to level off
the area that's necessary to have six courts up here in the future -- forget about the
lights, put them in, put in the conduit around the court being ready to put the lights in.
But the number of hours that we gain of player time in order to have lights is minimal
and the cost of that is huge in terms of the whole project. And then I would look at some
aggressive ways to cut the cost of building these courts including some public
participation by a number of tennis players around who control various different
manufacturing and earth moving companies and stuff like that. Give, give the
public -- at least when I was Parks and Recreation Director of my city, I gave the public
a chance to speak with their dollars of what they wanted to do. And if we do that, we're
going to find that we're going to, we're going to get some, we're going, we could, we
could, we could open this thing up a little bit. So, I appreciate your time and I will
support it in any way that I can. You're welcome to come down and take a look at, at
what, what my little court is like down there in Pukalani. And, and we appreciate
everything that you're doing and ... I definitely appreciate the job of trying to balance all
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these things off 'cause we certainly heard some prevailing and great argu ... arguments
for the, the groups that have spoken here so far. So, thank you again.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you, Mr. Champion. Next, Henry, Henry Lau. We haven't seen you
for a while, Henry. Good to see you.
MR. LAU: Good evening, Mr. Chairman, and Members of the Council. It's been quite a while,
yes, but I've been retired now quite a while too. Since retirement, I took up tennis so
that's why I'm here. I'd like to speak on behalf of myself and my immediate family and
also on behalf of maybe 15 to 20 people, my co-tennis players. I'm also the captain of a
team and they said, yeah, go get 'em. So, I'm speaking for about 50 people all
together. Yeah, we need some, some more courts. It's heavily used. These courts are
well designed. It's a good location. We got lot of parking. Plenty land. Yeah, this is a
good project because we already own the land. There's a lot of acres. We've walked it
many times and I think it's a doable project. The community is supporting it and I'm
asking for your support. We need it now. Thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you, Henry.
MR. LAU: Any questions?
COUNCILMEMBER ARAKAWA: Questions.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Questions for Mr. Lau? Mr. Arakawa.
COUNCILMEMBER ARAKAWA: Yeah, Henry, good to see you again. When you were
working on these tennis courts when we first put in the courts, originally, it was going to
be one court and we were able to expand it to two while Charmaine Tavares was Park
Director at the time and we planned this out. In looking at the need up here and I've
never had the opportunity to play these courts, how many courts do you think we really
need to plan for in this area?
MR. LAU: I think we can put six maximum according to our amateur architect. Right? There's
enough for six but we're only asking for two more to make it four.
COUNCILMEMBER ARAKAWA: Okay, so -MR. LAU: But, you know, in the future there's some land. It's expandable.
COUNCILMEMBER ARAKAWA: Well, actually the property here is Von Temsky property.
They lease it to the County and I know that Mary has spoken to me and we've sent a
letter to the Administration, actually several, for them to actually take over the property
because the Von Tempsky's were trying to give it to the County and that was never
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completed. So, I'm kind of hoping that, you know, since Gordon passed away, Mary
doesn't pass away before the County actually takes over the property. Because if we, if
we don't do that and the lease expires, it will all back to the Von Tempsky's and they've
been trying for at least six or seven years to give it to the County. So-MR. LAU: We will get it though, right?
COUNCILMEMBER ARAKAWA: Not if we don't accept it. They, they ... anyhow that that we
could talk about that later but I just wanted to know what the maximum courts are.
MR. LAU: Yeah, we think it can hold six and we have a good community support to maintain it,
you know, keep it in good shape. Steve and I has been up here many times weeding
and pinning up things and chasing kids away that were skateboarding you know. We,
we kind of protective about it 'cause we know it's a good facility for this area.
COUNCILMEMBER ARAKAWA: Okay. So, you want two -MR. LAU: Two more.
COUNCILMEMBER ARAKAWA: -- the dia ... the diagram that's here is adequate?
MR. LAU: Yeah, we figure that's the best, easiest, flattest area.
COUNCILMEMBER ARAKAWA: Okay. Thank you, Henry.
MR. LAU: Thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you, Henry. Next, we have Suzanne McCarthy. Suzanne, please.
MS. MCCARTHY: Hi, my name is Suzanne McCarthy and I'm here on behalf of MEO. The, I
don't, it's the division that gives the small business loans. And I'm just here to offer my
support for them and hope that you renew their funding that they need to continue
giving people like myself loans to open small businesses and help Maui County grow.
And I just hope you give' em the money to help other people like myself.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Is this speCifically about the Micro-Enterprise Program, Suzanne?
MS. MCCARTHY: Yes. Uh-huh. Right.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay.
MS. MCCARTHY: Micro-Enterprise, right. Great. Thank you. Thank you.
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CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Thank you very much for being here and waiting.
MS. MCCARTHY: Yeah, no problem.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Next, we have Edith Don.
MS. DON: Thank you, Council Members, for coming all the way up to Kula. I'm testifying on
behalf of the request for the additional tennis courts. The Kula, the two Kula courts are
wonderful. They're often filled. The weather's just perfect up here. It rains a lot in
Pukalani and Makawao. And my husband and I we have a private court and we allow
Seabury to use it. Seabury does not, only has one court. They use ours plus a couple
of other private courts scattered around to do their practices. There's just no central
facility for them to practice. And then we would have a junior tennis program up here if
we did have a tennis facility. Right now, a lot of the kids if the parents are able to drive
them, they go join the Wailuku Junior Tennis Club but there is no Upcountry tennis
program up here because of the lack of facilities. And it rains more in Pukalani and
Makawao. Oftentimes, when Seabury is practicing on our courts, if it rains that's too
bad that's it. But Kula oftentimes if it has rained over in Pukalani and Makawao we
have driven up to Kula and it's very nice up here. So, most of the time I would say that,
you know, the courts are being used quite a bit. Thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you, Edith. Okay. Next, we have Patricia Aiken. And if there's
anyone else that would like to testify this evening, please make it known and we'll make
sure you have your opportunity.
MS. AIKEN: Good evening, and thank you so much. We appreciate you being here this
evening. And as you can see I was over, taking advantage of the fabulous conditions at
the two Kula courts tonight. Edith called me and said okay we're on. So, here we are.
We would be up here all the time. The, the lights, you know, having lit courts. I kind of
disagree with Rick. I would go ahead and put in two more courts with lights and, and
plan for it for two others because as everyone else has said these are the perfect
conditions. In the four years that I've been playing tennis up here, I've only been rained
out three times that's amazing. And so, we'd really like to encourage you to put those
courts in. People from as far away as Peahi come up to play here. I've had people
from Wailuku when it's rained out there, they know Kula is always going to have great
conditions so you're not just looking at something for Upcountry people. If there were
more courts, people would make the drive to come up and use 'em when, when they're
rained out other places. So, it's a tremendous sport. I agree with everyone. I think we
really need to pay attention to the lighting situation that you put in neighbor friendly
lights that aren't going to disturb the neighbors. And, you know, we, maybe start putting
those in everywhere because we're destroying the night sky here in, in Maui when we
don't really need to. So, Alan, I'll see you at the nurses mix doubles. Be ready this
year, okay. Okay.
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ALL: ... (laughter) ...
COUNCILMEMBER ARAKAWA: I'm getting tired of you guys beating up on me.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Is he a easy fish, Patricia?
ALL: ... (laughter) ...
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, is there anyone else that would like to speak this evening?
... END OF PUBLIC TESTIMONY...

CHAIR HOKAMA: If not, on behalf of the Members of the Committee, we thank the Kula
community for sharing your hospitality with us and we thank you for participating this
evening and we look forward to seeing you again. This meeting -- oh, one minute, one,
one item, Members, we have written testimony of four in support of MEO. If there's no
objections to having it part of the record.
COUNCIL MEMBERS VOICED NO OBJECTIONS (AA, RC, JJ, MM, WN)
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. So ordered. This meeting is adjourned ... .(gavel) . ..
ACTION:

ADJOURN:

DEFER pending further discussion.
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